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NOW come the Staff witnesses of the Illinois Commerce Commission (“Staff”), by 

and through their undersigned counsel, pursuant to Section 200.800 of the Illinois 

Commerce Commission’s (“Commission” or “ICC”) Rules of Practice (83 Ill. Adm. Code 

200.800), respectfully submit their Initial Brief in the instant proceeding. 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The Commission initiated this citation proceeding against Shawneetown, Illinois, 

a Municipal Corporation (“Shawneetown”) October 20, 2010.  The purpose of the 

proceeding is to determine whether the Shawneetown Municipal Gas System has failed 

to comply with the following requirements of the Code of Federal Regulations adopted 

by the Commission as required by Section 3 of the Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act 
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(“Act”) and rules adopted by the Commission and to determine whether civil penalties 

should be imposed pursuant to Section 7 of the Act:   

(1)  49 CFR §199.113(b), Employee Assistance Program, requires 
education under each Employee Assistance Program to include, at 
a minimum, display and distribution of informational material, 
display and distribution of a community hot-line telephone number 
for employee assistance, and display and distribution of the 
employer’s policy regarding the use of prohibited drugs.  

(2)  49 CFR §199.113(c) requires training under each Employee 
Assistance Program for supervisory personnel who will determine 
whether an employee must be drug tested based on reasonable 
cause. The training must include one 60-minute period of training 
on the specific, contemporaneous physical, behavioral and 
performance indicators of probable drug use.  

(3)  49 CFR §199.117(a)(4) requires that records confirming that 
supervisors and employees have been trained as required by this 
Part must be kept for a minimum of 3 years. The training for 
employees must include notice of the availability of and Employee 
Assistance Program regarding drug use and the operators’ policy 
regarding the use of prohibited drugs. The training for supervisors 
must also include methods to determine if an employee should be 
tested based on reasonable cause. 

(4)  49 CFR §199.119(d), Reporting of anti-drug testing results, allows 
an employer to use a service agent to perform random selection for 
drug testing of operator employees that may be part of a larger 
random testing pool of covered employees. However, the operator 
must ensure that the service agent used is testing at the 
appropriate percentage established for the industry and that 
covered employees are in a random testing pool.  

(5)  49 CFR §199.241, Training for Supervisors, requires each operator 
to en-sure that persons designated to determine whether 
reasonable suspicion exists to require a covered employee to 
undergo alcohol testing under Section 199.225(b) receive at least 
60 minutes of training on physical, behavioral, speech, and 
performance indicators of probable alcohol misuse. 49 CFR § 
199.227(c)(6)(iii) requires documentation of training provided to 
supervisors for the purpose of qualifying the supervisors to make a 
determination concerning the need for alcohol testing based on 
reasonable suspicion. 

 (6)  49 CFR §192.285(a) and (b), Plastic pipe, Qualifying Persons to 
Make Joints, states that no person may make a plastic pipe joint 
unless that person has been qualified under the applicable joining 
procedure and had a specimen joint tested in accordance with one 
of the methods listed under 49 CFR §192.283. 49 CFR §192.287, 
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Plastic pipe, Inspection of Joints, requires the operator to be 
qualified by appropriate training or experience in evaluation of the 
acceptability of plastic pipe joints made under the applicable joining 
procedure.  

(7)  49 CFR §192.481(a) requires the operator to inspection each 
pipeline or portion of pipeline that is exposed to the atmosphere for 
evidence of atmospheric corrosion at least once every three 
calendar years with intervals not exceeding 39 months. 

(8)  49 CFR §192.615(a) requires each operator to establish written 
procedures to minimize the hazard resulting from a gas pipeline 
emergency. At a minimum, the procedure must provide for prompt 
and effective response to a notice of each type of emergency 
including gas detected inside or near a building, which is identified 
in the Code of Federal Regulations as an emergency response 
situation. Prompt response is defined as responding without delay  

(9)  49 CFR §192.615(c) requires each operator to establish and 
maintain liaison with appropriate fire, police, and other public 
officials to share information regarding resources or entities that 
may respond to a natural gas emergency, acquaint those officials 
with the operator’s ability to respond to an emergency, identify the 
types of gas pipeline emergencies that require notification, and plan 
for mutual assistance.  

(10)  49 CFR §192.616(e) requires the operator’s Public Awareness 
Program to include activities to advise affected school districts, 
businesses, and residents of the location of pipeline facilities.  

(11)  49 CFR §192.625(f) requires the operator to assure proper 
concentration of odorant in the natural gas system through periodic 
sampling of the combustible gases. Instrumentation is to be used to 
verify that the odorant is readily detectable to a person with a 
normal sense of smell.  

(12)  49 CFR §192.721(b) outlines operator requirements to periodically 
patrol mains in places or on structures where anticipated physical 
movement or external loading could cause failure or leakage. Such 
locations include mains attached to buildings, mains on bridges, or 
mains crossing under highways or railroads.  

(13)  49 CFR §192.747(a) requires that each valve that may be 
necessary for the safe operation of the distribution system be 
checked and serviced at intervals not exceeding 15 months, but at 
least once each calendar year.  

(14)  49 CFR § 192.807(b) requires operator qualification records 
supporting an individual’s current qualification shall be maintained 
while the individual is performing covered tasks. Records of prior 
qualification and records of individuals no longer performing 
covered tasks must be retained for a period of five years. Covered 
tasks include any task that is performed on a pipeline facility, is an 
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operation or maintenance task, is performed as a requirement of 
Part 192, and affects the operation or integrity of the pipeline. 

(15) 83 Ill. Adm. Code 520.10(b) requires operators to develop and 
follow training procedures which will assure that its field employees 
engaged in construction, operation, inspection and maintenance of 
the gas system are properly trained.  

 

Pursuant to proper legal notice, a pre-hearing conference was held on December 13, 

2010, before a duly authorized Administrative Law Judge of the Commission at its 

offices in Springfield, Illinois.  Shawneetown appeared through its counsel. At the 

December 13, 2010 hearing, and subsequent hearings, a procedural schedule was duly 

set. Tr. at 12, 17, 23, 29-30, 38.   An evidentiary hearing was held on November 15, 

2011, in the course of which the pre-filed testimony of the parties was taken into 

evidence. Tr. at 33-39.  At the conclusion of the November 15, 2011 hearing, the matter 

was marked  “Heard and Taken”. Tr. at 39 

II. LEGAL STANDARDS 
 
 The Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act (“Act”) (220 ILCS 20/1 et seq.) requires the 

Commission to: 

...adopt rules establishing minimum safety standards for the transportation 
of gas and for pipeline facilities.  Such rules shall be at least as inclusive, 
as stringent, and compatible with, the minimum safety standards adopted 
by the Secretary of Transportation under the Federal Act.  220 ILCS 20/3. 

 
At 83 Ill. Adm. Code 590, “Minimum Safety Standards for Transportation of Gas and for 

Gas Pipeline Facilities” (“Part 590”) the Commission incorporated by reference the 

applicable federal rules in 1977.  Part 590 has been updated biennially since then to adopt 

any amendments.   

Penalties are provided for in Section 7 which provides in relevant part: 

(a) Any person violating paragraph (a) of Section 6 of this Act or any rule or 
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order issued under this Act is subject to a civil penalty not to exceed the 
maximum penalties established by Section 60122(a)(1) of Title 49 of the 
United States Code for each day the violation persists. 

 
The maximum penalty established by 49 USC §60122(a)(1) is $100,000 for each violation.  

This section also provides that a separate violation occurs for each day the violation 

continues and that the maximum civil penalty for a related series of violations is 

$1,000,000. 

 The Illinois Pipeline Safety Act provides guidance for the Commission in 

determining the amount of the penalty.  Section 7(b) provides inter alia: 

...the Commission shall consider the appropriateness of the penalty to the 
size of the business of the person charged, the gravity of the violation, and 
the good faith of the person charged in attempting to achieve compliance, 
after notification of a violation... 

  

III. FACTS 
 
 Shawneetown does not dispute that it was in violation of the minimum safety 

standards enumerated above and adopted by the Commission for the transportation of 

gas and for pipeline facilities. Joint Ex. 1, ¶5.  In response to this Citation proceeding 

and the testimony filed by Staff, herein, Shawneetown has undertaken to correct the 

violations.  Shawneetown Ex. 1 at 5-6; Shawneetown Ex. 2 at 3-6. Shawneetown 

entered into an agreement through which Consumers Gas Company (“Consumers”) has 

undertaken the full operation and maintenance of the Shawneetown System. 

Shawneetown Ex. 2 at 3-6; Shawneetown Ex. 3.0 at 4. Since Consumers took over the 

operations, all but one of the violations have been corrected. Shawneetown Ex. 2 at 6; 

Staff Ex. 2.0 at 5. The violations and the corrective actions taken by Shawneetown are 

set forth in detail in the Stipulation entered into between Shawneetown and Staff which 
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was entered into evidence as Joint Exhibit 1.   

IV. PENALTY ASSESSMENT 
 
 The Gas Pipeline Safety Act provides that owners or operators of pipeline 

facilities who fail to comply with applicable safety standards established under the Act are 

subject to a civil penalty for each day that the violation persists.  (220 ILCS 20/6)  The 

maximum penalty is set at $100,000 for each violation, and capped at $1,000,000 for a 

related series of violations.  Id.; see also 49 U.S.C. §60122.  

 Three factors should be considered when imposing a penalty.  First, the good 

faith, on the part of the entity charged, in attempting to achieve compliance after 

notification of the violation should be taken into account.  Second, the size of the 

penalty should be appropriate to the size of the entity being fined.  Finally, the gravity of 

the violation should be considered.  See 220 ILCS 20/7(b); see also 49 U.S.C. 

§20122(b). 

A. Good Faith 
 
 Shawneetown appears to have operated in good faith subsequent to the filing of 

Staff testimony in the Citation proceeding.  Shawneetown attributes its failure to be 

correct the violations prior to that time to the former Gas Superintendent.  According to 

Shawneetown, the former employee could not, or would not perform his required duties 

and moreover appears to have repeatedly stated to the Mayor and to the Shawneetown 

Council that the identified violations had been or were being rectified, when this was not 

in fact the case.  Shawneetown Ex. 3.0 at 3. When the Shawneetown became aware 

that the violations were not rectified, but were ongoing, it initially suspended, and 

eventually dismissed, that individual. Staff Ex. 2.0 at 4-5.   
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 Shawneetown then entered into a contract with Consumers for the operation and 

maintenance of the Shawneetown System. Shawneetown Ex. 2 at 3-6; Shawneetown 

Ex. 3.0 at 4.  Thereafter, Consumers began working with the Commission’s Pipeline 

Safety Program (“PSP”) Staff to remedy the violations. Staff Ex. 2.0 at 4-5.  As of 

October 11, 2011, corrective measures had been taken, and all but one of the cited 

violations had been corrected. Id.   

 Staff considers Shawneetown’s act of entering into the contract with Consumers 

to be evidence of good faith and resulted in the correction of the violations.   This 

mitigates Shaweetown’s failure to take serious actions to correct the probable violations 

until the Commission initiated citation proceedings.  Therefore, Staff recommends that 

the Commission find that Shawneetown acted in good faith subsequent to the filing of 

Staff direct testimony in the Citation proceeding.   In recognition of its conclusion that 

Shawneetown acted in good faith after the filing of Staff testimony, Staff has reduced its 

recommended fine for each of the violations.  Staff Ex. 2.0 at 7-12 

B. Size of Shawneetown 
 

 Shawneetown and the Shawneetown System are small, and with very limited 

revenue.  The Shawneetown population was reported as 1,239 according to 2010 

census figures.  There is no industry and only a few businesses in the City.  

Shawneetown Ex. 3.0 at 6.  The City gas system serves approximately 425 gas 

customers. Id. at 8. The City found it necessary to increase the monthly gas facility 

charge by 125%, from $8.00 per month to $18.00 per month for residential customers 

and $25.00 per month for business customers, to cover the costs of the operation and 

maintenance contract with Consumers. Further, Shawneetown indicates that the 
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Shawneetown Gas Department has been operating at a loss for the past two years.   

Reportedly, in the fiscal year ending April 30, 2011, the Shawneetown Gas Department 

lost $65,366 and had a cash balance of $70,926. Shawneetown Ex 3.0, Att. B.  In 

recognition of its conclusion that Shawneetown is small with limited revenue, Staff has 

reduced its recommended fine for each of the violations.  Staff Ex. 3.0 at 7-12. 

C. Gravity of the Violations 
 

 When considering the gravity of the violations, it is Staff’s view that any violation 

of the minimum safety standards under Title 49 should be considered a serious 

violation.  It is fortunate, as Shawneetown concedes, Shawneetown Ex. 1.0 at 6, that 

PSP Staff identified these violations, brought them to the attention of Shawneetown, 

and Shawneetown corrected them prior to the occurrence of an event resulting in 

personal injury or property damage.  Because these violations did not result in personal 

injury or property damage, in Staff’s view, it would be appropriate for the Commission to 

consider a civil penalty below the maximum allowed.   

The ranking of the gravity of each violation should be determined individually.  As 

such, Staff identified each violation or set of violations under the same or related code 

sections and made recommendations regarding the gravity of the violations.  Staff’s 

recommendations are set forth below. 

D. Staff’s Recommendations 
 

(1)  For the violations that relate to testing of individuals at the 
appropriate testing rate, retention of records, training of supervisors 
and display of information regarding the company policy regarding 
the use of drugs and alcohol and information related to the 
employee assistance program, Staff recommends a penalty 
assessment of $500 for each violation of 49 CFR §199.113(b),49 
CFR §199.113(c), 49 CFR §199.117(a)(4), 49 CFR §199.119(d), 49 
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CFR §199.241, for a total of $2,500.  This reduction is based on the 
fact that neither system failures nor serious incidents resulted from 
Shawneetown’s failure to meet the requirements; 

(2)  For the violations that relate to qualification of an individual to make 
plastic pipe joints and the required inspection of such joint to verify 
the quality of the joint, 49 CFR §192.285(a) and (b), in light of the 
fact that installation of quality joints is a very important factor to the 
integrity of a pipeline system, the gravity of this violation should be 
considered moderate. Staff recommends a $2,000 penalty 
assessment;  

(3)  For the violations that relate to atmospheric corrosion control 
monitoring, 49 CFR §192.481(a), in light of the fact that no serious 
corrosion or pitting was identified on the above ground structures, 
Staff recommends a penalty assessment of $500 for the violation; 

(4)  For the violation regarding Shawneetown’s failure to provide a 
prompt response with a notification of a potential pipeline 
emergency, 49 CFR §192.615(a), Staff recommends a $1,500 
penalty assessment.  Although neither personal injury nor property 
damage resulted from the delay, failure to promptly response to 
such a notice is a serious violation;  

(5)  For the violation regarding maintaining liaison with emergency 
responders and public officials, 49 CFR §192.615(c), Staff 
recommends a penalty assessment of $1,250. Although no 
emergency requiring stakeholder participation occurred, lack of 
preparedness is a serious violation, with potentially very serious 
consequences;  

(6) For the failure to conduct Public Awareness Program notifications, 
49 CFR §192.616(e), Staff recommends a penalty assessment of 
$750.  Although distribution of this information on a timely basis is 
essential to an effective damage prevention program and 
emergency response, neither damage to the pipeline facilities nor 
inadequate emergency response resulted from the failure to comply 
with the requirement;  

(7)  For the violation of the requirement to perform periodic sampling of 
the odorant added to the natural gas, 49 CFR §192.625(f), Staff 
recommends a penalty of $1,250.   It is essential that adequate 
odorant concentration levels be maintained in the natural gas 
stream and this is a serious violation, however, in this case 
adequate levels were maintained;  

(8)  For the violation of the requirement to patrol mains in places or on 
structures where anticipated physical movement or external loading 
could cause failure or leakage, 49 CFR §192.721(b), Staff 
recommends a penalty of $500.  The Shawneetown system is 
relatively concentrated and day-to-day operations would most likely 
result in the operator at least passing by and casually observing 
most areas of anticipated loading;  
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(9)  For the violation relating to Shawneetown’s failure to check and 
service each valve necessary for the safe operation of the gas 
system, 49 CFR §192.747(a), Staff recommends a penalty of 
$1,000.  The Shawneetown System consists of 100% polyethylene 
main, which would allow the opportunity to excavate and squeeze 
off a pipeline in the event of an unintended release of gas.  
Although this secondary option would result in a delay, shutdown 
could be achieved;  

(10)  For the failure to maintain operator qualification records, 49 CFR § 
192.807(b), Staff recommends a penalty of $1,500.  The records 
were not maintained and it was determined that the individual 
charged with performing the tasks on the Shawneetown System 
was incapable of successfully qualifying for many of the required 
tasks.  This a serious violation since there is no way to determine if 
tasks performed by this individual were completed as required; 

(11) For the failure to provide an adequate training program for 
individuals that perform tasks on the gas system, 83 Ill. Adm. Code 
520.10(b), Staff recommends a penalty of $1,250.  It is essential 
that operator personnel follow a training program to ensure that 
their knowledge base remains current regarding ever changing 
regulatory requirements associated with the safe operation of a 
natural gas system.  

 
Staff Ex. 3.0 at 4-14 
 

V. CONCLUSION 
 
 WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, the Staff of the Illinois Commerce 

Commission respectfully requests that Commission: 

A.  Find that Shawneetown was in violation of requirements of the Code of 

Federal Regulations and Commission rules which were adopted as the 

minimum safety standards for the transportation of gas and for gas 

pipeline facilities; 

B. Find that Shawneetown acted in good faith in attempting to achieve 

compliance with the Federal Regulations and Commission rules after Staff 

filed its direct testimony in this proceeding; 

C. Find that Shawneetown is a small natural gas distribution company with 
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approximately 425 gas customers; 

D. Find that Staff made appropriate recommendations as set forth above 

regarding each of the violations; 

E. Order that Shawneetown shall be charged a penalty of $14,000; and  

F. Allow such other and further relief, as this Commission deems appropriate.  

 
 
 
 
December 15, 2011    Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
 
      JANIS VON QUALEN 
      MATTHEW L. HARVEY 
      Staff Counsel  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Matthew L. Harvey 
Office of General Counsel 
Illinois Commerce Commission 
160 N. LaSalle, Ste. C-800 
Chicago, IL   60601 
Phone:  (312) 793-3243 
Fax:      (312) 793-1556 
E-mail:  mharvey@icc.illinois.gov  

JANIS VON QUALEN 
Office of General Counsel 
Illinois Commerce Commission 
527 East Capitol Avenue 
Springfield, IL  62701 
Phone:  (217) 785-3402 
Fax:  (217) 524-8928 
jvonqual@icc.illinois.gov 
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